
_________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, March 17, 2014 
Page 1 of 2 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
JESSIE MAYS COMMUNITY HALL 

30975 NW Hillcrest Street 
Monday, March 17, 2014 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 03/03/2014 Council meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 

may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  
You are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, 
only your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

   
6. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff reports will be provided by the Public Works Director, Police Chief, and 

Library Director 
 
7. PRESENTATION: 

Herb Hirst: Employer Support to the Military: specifically the Guard and Reserve 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Approval of Smokehouse Summit Event 
B. Discussion of combining Farmers’ Market and Annual Ice Cream Social 
C. Report on comparison of cost of Moonlight printing and distributing the City 

Newsletter compared to staff copying and distributing it. 
D. Approval of Resolution No.1822 terminating temporary reductions in System 

Development Fees 
E. Discussion of scheduling Budget Committee dates 
F. Consider Budget Committee Appointment: Cynthia Hirst 
G. Discussion on prohibiting the location of medical marijuana facilities within the 

City of North Plains 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 98



_________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, March 17, 2014 
Page 2 of 2 

H. Discussion of February Check Register 
I. Distribution of Statement of Economic Interest forms 

 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion and approval of specific draft city policies from number 614-631.  
(Copies of policies were distributed at the 9/16/13 Council meeting) 

B. Discussion of 4th of July Fireworks 

 
11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 FIRST READING:   

 None Scheduled 
 
SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 
 

12. COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on 

meetings attended and other items. 
B. April 2014 Council Calendar 
 

13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Saturday, March 22: Benefit Dance at Jessie Mays @ 7:30 p.m. (proceeds to 
North Plains Elementary School for Art Supplies-Council matching funds) 

 Sunday, March 23: Playdate at Jessie Mays @ 1:30 p.m. 

 Thursday, April 10: Volunteer Recognition Spaghetti Dinner at Jessie Mays @ 
6:30. 

 Saturday, April 12: Kukatonon Children’s African Dance Troupe at Jessie 
Mays @ 1:00 (rescheduled to this date because of the snow in February) 

 Saturday, April 19: Spring Country Classic Dance sponsored by NP Senior 
Center at Jessie Mays @ 7:30 p.m. 

 Sunday, April 27: Playdate at Jessie Mays @ 1:30 p.m. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at Jessie Mays 
Community Hall at 30975 NW Hillcrest Street, North Plains, Oregon. 

 
The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 

 
Monday, April 7, 2014 Monday, April 21, 2014 Monday, May 5, 2014 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 3, 2014 
Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial  
Monday, March 3, 2014 

 
City Council met with Planning Commission for a Joint Work Session which began at 6:00. 
The majority of the discussion addressed options the Planning Commission has regarding 
applications that come before them. This discussion arose from a hearing for an appeal of 
a Planning Commission decision that the Council heard in February. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor David Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City 

Council to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Hatcher conducted the flag salute 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: 

Michael Demagalski, Robert Kindel, Jr., Charlynn Newton, and Glen Warren 
 

Excused Absence: Michael Broome 
 
Staff present: City Manager Martha DeBry, Chief of Police Bill Snyder, Library 
Director Debbie Brodie, Finance Director Rachael Lembo, Management Analyst 
Jennifer Knowles, Deputy City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 

B. Approval of minutes of 02/18/2014 Council meeting 

Motion by Demagalski and seconded by Kindel to approve the Consent Agenda. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 None forthcoming 
 
6. PRESENTATION: 

None Scheduled 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion FY 2012-13 Financial Statements from auditors Pauly Rodgers and 
Co, PC. 

 
Finance Manager Rachael Lembo presented the Audited Financial Statements for 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 3, 2014 
Page 2 of 6 

FY2012-13 to the Council. Copies of the full financial reports were distributed to the 
Council and posted on-line. The preliminary results were presented to Council on August 
14, 2013.  The changes in results since receiving the preliminary report were as follows: 

 Accrual of property taxes received in August: $1,968 in the General Fund and $436 in 
the Urban Renewal Fund.  

 Recording of the full amount of the capital lease for police vehicle in the General Fund: 
$41,066 as capital outlay and $41,066 as proceeds of debt. 

 Recording of the full amount of the loan for the purchase of the Yellow House: $130,006 
as capital outlay (preliminary results included only the cash portion of $40,006) and 
$90,000 as proceeds of debt. 

 
The management letter received from the auditors’ referenced deficiencies in internal 
control which have all now been addressed and controls are in place. These fixes have 
been approved by the auditors. 
 
Lembo reported that overall the City’s Net Position increased $698k in FY2012-13. Lembo 
lead the Council through each of the funds. Council asked clarifying questions. No action 
was taken on this item as it was informational only. 
 

B. Adoption of Resolution No. 1817 approving the North Plains Community Garden 
Club requests for use of Jessie Mays tennis courts and related equipment 

 
DeBry stated this is a routine resolution that will allow the North Plains Community Garden 
Club the use of the tennis courts at Jessie Mays, the provision of a city tent, and additional 
police surveillance the night prior to the plant sale that takes place the same weekend of 
the city wide garage sale—May 3, 2014. 
 
Motion by Demagalski and seconded by Lenahan to approve Resolution No. 1817. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

C. Adoption of Resolution No. 1818 approving adjustments in the Master Fee 
Schedule 

 
Lembo presented the staff report. The fee schedule is reviewed annually as part of the 
budget package. Staff is suggesting a couple of changes that will simplify the fee schedule 
and would like to make these changes effective for the FY13-14 year.  The first change is 
to simplify the deposit required for a business water account.  The second change is to 
combine the water shut off and water turn on fees to one fee.  This fee is charged when a 
bill is past due and the water is shut off and subsequently turned on when payment is 
made.  
 
Motion by Lenahan and seconded by Warren to approve Resolution No. 1818. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 

D. Adoption of Resolution No. 1819 approving the 2013-14 Supplemental Budget 
 

Before the floor was given to Lembo, DeBry acknowledged the great job that Lembo has 
done on the Supplemental Budget. She stated that Lembo had done the vast majority of 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 3, 2014 
Page 3 of 6 

the work on this and has created a template that has streamlined the process. 
 
Lembo presented the staff report and the supplemental budget to the Council. She stated 
the supplemental budget proposed updates to various revenue and expenditure line items 
based on the most current financial information. A list of changes was included with each 
fund and Lembo went through each fund individually with Council. 
 
The proposed Supplemental Budget was distributed in the Council Packet to the Council 
and was posted on-line on the City’s website at www.northplains.org. 
 
Council asked clarifying questions about YTD expenditures and budget changes. In 
addition, Council inquired about how to track revenue that Council would like used for 
specific expenditures, such as the Recology Fund. Lembo confirmed that the General 
Fund will transfer $10k/year of Recology funds into the Street Fund, and will work on a 
presentation that shows the remainder is used for community events. Council was firm on 
not wanting any money to be used from the Contingency Fund of the General Fund 
without Council’s specific approval for that expense. 
 
Resolution No.1819 was not approved at this time, but will be revisited. The changes that 
were suggested throughout this discussion will be incorporated in the Supplemental 
Budget and resubmitted to the Council at a later meeting that will be noticed. The changes 
that will be addressed include the Contingency Fund in the General Fund only reflecting 
the $15,000 deducted for the new Springbrook Software and the loan from the General 
Fund to the URA to reflect the correct budgeting terminology verses accounting 
perspective. 
 

E. Adoption of Resolution No. 1820 closing the Internal Service Fund. 
 
This resolution acts upon the closing of the Internal Service Fund that was discussed 
during the Supplemental Budget agenda item.  It would be more efficient and transparent 
to combine the departments that were separated out using the Internal Service Fund into 
the General Fund. This changes the allocation method.  
 
Motion by Demagalski and seconded by Lenahan to approve Resolution No. 1820. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

F. Adoption of Resolution No. 1821 committing Water Fund System Development 
Charges 

 
Lembo presented the staff report. To ensure proper tracking of System Development 
Charge (SDC) revenue staff is proposing that Council approve a resolution committing 
System Development Charges to capital projects. This will formally establish a Committed 
Fund balance line to track SDC revenue less capital projects expense, in both internal 
documents and the annual financial statements. This is the highest level of constraint that 
can be placed by Council, and will remain in place until Council formally removes it. The 
Committed fund balance will consist of the fund balance transferred from the Water Capital 
Fund into the Water Fund in FY13, plus SDC revenue less capital expenditures incurred in 
FY13 and FY14. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 98

http://www.northplains.org/


__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 3, 2014 
Page 4 of 6 

 
Motion by Kindel and seconded by Lenahan to approve Resolution No. 1820. The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 

G. Reminder that the Statement of Economic Interest forms will be distributed in 
the next few weeks. 

 
Staff reminded Council that the Statement of Economic Interest forms will be distributed 
from the State Ethics Committee in the next few weeks. Council members will have until 
April 15 to complete their forms and submit them to the state. 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

A. Discussion and approval of specific draft city policies from number 614-631 
 
Motion by Lenahan and seconded by Warren to move this agenda item to the next council 
meeting due to the lateness of the hour. Discussion ensued. The motion was approved 
with a 5-1 split vote with Newton voting against. 
 

B. Update on Smokehouse Summit event 
 
Per a request from Council President Lenahan, Jennifer Knowles updated the Council on 
the status of the Smokehouse Summit BBQ event scheduled to take place on June 7 & 8. 
Knowles distributed a budget sheet to Council with the numbers she had received to date.  
 
Jason Specht of Green Mountain Grills has committed to providing the required purse for 
the event. Knowles also listed the other companies that have been contacted who are 
interesting in supporting this event either financially or in-kind or both. 
 
10. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
None Scheduled 

 
SECOND READING: 
A. Approval and adoption of Ordinance No. 419 amending Chapter 6.25 peddlers, 

solicitors, street vendor and temporary merchant ordinance.  First reading by 
title only took place on 2/18/14. 
 

Motion by Kindel. Second by Lenahan to read Ordinance No. 419 by title only for the 
second time. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Hatcher read Ordinance No. 419 an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North 
Plains, Oregon, Amending Municipal Code 6.25 Peddlers, Solicitors, Street Vendor and 
Temporary Merchant Ordinance by title only for the second reading. 
 
Motion by Kindel. Second by Lenahan to adopt Ordinance No. 419. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 3, 2014 
Page 5 of 6 

A. Approval and adoption of Ordinance No. 420 establishing Chapter 4.50 
prohibiting sale and use of tobacco and vapor products by minors. First reading 
by title only took place on 2/18/14. 

 
DeBry presented the staff report for Ordinance No. 420 and 421. These are the 
ordinances recommended by Carla Bennett, the Tobacco Prevention and Education 
Coordinator of Washington County. Council asked questions regarding enforcement. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Second by Kindel to read Ordinance No. 420 by title only for the 
second time. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Hatcher read Ordinance No. 420 an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North 
Plains, Oregon, Establishing Municipal Code 4.50 Prohibiting the Sale and use of Tobacco 
and Vapor Products to Minors by title only for the second time. 
 
Motion by Demagalski. Second by Warren to adopt Ordinance No. 420. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 

B. Introduction of Ordinance No. 421 establishing Chapter 4.53 disallowing the use 
of smoking and tobacco products on city property. 

 
Motion by Demagalski. Second by Warren to read Ordinance No. 421 by title only for the 
second time. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Hatcher read Ordinance No. 421 an Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North 
Plains, Oregon, Establishing Municipal Code 4.53 Prohibiting the Use of Smoking and 
Tobacco Products at City Facilities by title only for the second time. 
 
Motion by Lenahan. Second by Demagalski to adopt Ordinance No. 421. The motion was 
approved unanimously. 
 
11. STAFF REPORTS 
 
Hatcher proposed to Council that the Staff Reports be moved to the beginning of the 
agenda. There are many times when Chief Snyder is called away after sitting through 
most of the meeting and then doesn’t have an opportunity to present his report. He also 
comes in early in the morning and ends up putting in a 14 hour day when the Council 
meetings last more than two hours. Also, by waiting until the end of the Council meeting, 
Library Director Debbie Brodie has already spent two hours of her part-time hours waiting 
for her opportunity to present her staff report to Council. Council was in agreement to 
move the Staff Reports to the beginning of the Council agendas. 
 
DeBry reported that Public Works is recruiting for a Utility Worker I/II to fill a recent 
vacancy. 
 
DeBry inquired of the Council if they want to continue the In-Fill Incentive Program or if 
they would prefer to end it earlier than what was initially planned. The City is in the second 
year of the program. This program provided a 75% reduction in SDCs for in-fill projects the 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 98



__________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, March 3, 2014 
Page 6 of 6 

first year; 50% reduction this second year of the program and would continue through 
2015 with a 25% reduction in SDCs. Council felt that the program has been very effective 
but may have run its course.  Council asked DeBry to bring it back to Council as an 
agenda item. 
 
DeBry informed Council of an upcoming agenda item concerning a request from the 
Chamber of Commerce to change the location and day of the annual Ice Cream Social to 
be on the first night of the Farmers’ Market and to take place on Commercial Street 
instead at Jessie Mays Community Hall. 
 
Brodie reported the results of a recent survey that was conducted by the Library. The 
results included the following suggestions: having the library open earlier; expanding the 
physical space: 1) more space for materials, 2) meeting rooms, 3) having programs on 
site—which would allow to check items out before or after the event. 
 
Brodie reported the Cover Oregon program is winding down. Medica has one more 
presentation to give in Forest Grove. Individuals will be directed to an insurance agent for 
enrollment from this point forward. 
 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Kindel informed the Council that Lloyd Lamordden passed away. 
 
13. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Saturday, March 22: Benefit Dance at Jessie Mays @ 7:30 p.m. (proceeds to 
North Plains Elementary School for Art Supplies) 

 Sunday, March 23: Playdate at Jessie Mays @ 1:30 p.m. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Hatcher adjourned the meeting at 10:04 p.m. 
 

 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________ Date approved _______________ 
Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 9A 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date: March 11, 2014 

To: City Council 

From: Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Approval of Smokehouse Summit BBQ Event  

Request:  Council consider approval of the Smokehouse summit BBQ event. 

Background: Staff has been working to arrange a large community event that includes 

a BBQ competition sanctioned by the Pacific Northwest Barbeque Association 

(PNWBA.)  The event would be centered on Commercial Street between Main and 

318th.  Ancillary activities would be a poker run, car show, auction, music, kids’ area and 

other entertainment such as a fire arts demonstration, and would require the closure of 

portions of Commercial Street, Main Street, 313th, 314th and 318th.  Admission would be 

free to the public.   

A large event like this is likely to attract more interest in economic development 

activities, and provide a temporary boost to local businesses, particularly in the 

downtown area.   

Fiscal Impact: The total budget for the BBQ competition is estimated at roughly 

$11,600, including hard and soft costs.  A combination of entry fees and sponsorships 

should result in an event that has no net cost to the City and raises funds for several 

local organizations.  

Approximately $5,000 would be used for the prize purse, which is essential to obtaining 

sanctioning from the PNWBA.  Jason Specht of Green Mountain Grills has provided the 

City with a guarantee of the $5,000 purse including a commitment of 6 grills and cash. 

Contestant fees are expected to generate a minimum of $4,500 reflecting 30 teams at 

$150 each.  The City will likely keep this low fee for early entrants, and raise the fee for 

last minute registrations.  Because this is a new event the entry fee is relatively low.  

Established events often charge in excess of $200. The Aloha Thriftway consistently 

attracted an average of 28 contestants.  Because this is a new event in the Portland 

area it is anticipated we will have a greater turnout closer to 40 entrants.  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 98



The City will also receive 10% of sales from the event.  Each BBQ Team will sell several 

thousand dollars of samples.  Many vendors offer full dinner plates with potato salad, 

beans and coleslaw which can generate $10,000+ in sales in a weekend.  The Reser’s 

donation will assist teams and the City with raising additional funds through this 

process. 

Additionally, the City has secured commitments for $1,000 in cash contributions from 

Oregon Canadian and Greg Baurer Floor Covering.  Additional potential sponsors have 

been contacted and more cash commitments are likely to be obtained over the next 3 

months.   

The table below shows the projected expenses for the event.  Items in blue may be 

changed to fit the available funding.  That is to say secured funding is adequate for 

known expenses making the event revenue neutral at this time.  Expenses in blue can 

be adjusted to further reduce costs. 

BBQ Event Activities     

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES $11,570  GRAND TOTAL REVENUE $12,149 
     

BBQ Competition     

Expense     Revenues   

PNWBA Application $100  Green Mountain Grills $3,274 

PNWBA Services $800  Hops  $125  

Prize Purse $5,000     

Banner $500   Oregon-Canadian  $500  

Portable toilets $400   Greg Bauer Flooring Co  $500  

Advertising $300     

Shuttle Carts $180  Vendor booth rental $100  

   Entry Fees (30@$150) $4,500 

Music and Entertainment   City % Sales $2,000 

 Band 1 Sat 1 - 4 pm $500     

 Band 2 Sat 4 - 8 pm $500     

 Band 3 Sun 10 am - 1 pm $500     

 Band 4 Sun 1 pm - 4 pm $500     

 Fire arts $500     

 AWL $300     

       

Staff $900      

SubTotal $10,980   SubTotal $10,999 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 98



     

Car Show/Poker Run     

Expense     Revenues   

Dash placques/goody bags $200  Entry Fees (75@$10) $750 

Trophies and ribbons $200  Entry Fees (40@$10) $400 

Hi hand/Low hand $150     

Subtotal $550   Subtotal $1,150 

     

Kids Area     

Expense     Revenues   

Bounce houses $0     

Face painting $40  NA $0 

Subtotal $40   Subtotal $0 
 

Funding for the event will be included in the Supplemental Budget, and revenues and 

expenses will be managed through the general fund.  All revenues and expenses will be 

in the 2013/2014 fiscal year.  

Environmental Issues:  NA 

Sample Motion: I move to approve the Smokehouse Summit event. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 98



 

1  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

 
Smokehouse 

Summit 
June 7 & 8, 2014 

 
Event Guide 

 
  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 98



 

2  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

Smokehouse Summit 

Event Guide 

2014 
 

OVERVIEW 4 

 

EVENT ORGANIZATION 5 

 

EVENT SCHEDULE 6 

 

LOCATION OF EVENTS 8 

 

Job Descriptions 

EVENT ORGANIZER 17 

BBQ COORDINATOR 19 

PNWBA LIAISON 20 

CAR SHOW COORDINATOR 21 

LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 22 

POKER RUN COORDINATOR 23 

VENDOR COORDINATOR 24 

VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 25 

 

ALCOHOL CHECK POINT VOLUNTEER 27 

CAR SHOW VOLUNTEER 28 

CASH MANAGER 29 

CHILDREN’S AREA VOLUNTEER 30 

GROUNDS CREW 31 

INFORMATION BOOTH VOLUNTEER 32 

PARKING VOLUNTEER 33 

CAR SHOW REGISTRATION VOLUNTEERS 34 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 98



 

3  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

SET-UP CREW 35 

TEAR-DOWN CREWS 36 

VOLUNTEER SOURCES 37 

 

General Information 

PNWBA EVENT SANCTIONING INFORMATION 39 

PNWBA SITE REQUIREMENTS 44 

PURSE INFORMATION 45 

2014 SMOKEHOUSE SUMMIT PROCEEDS DISTRIBUTION 47 

SPONSORSHIPS 48 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 98



 

4  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

OVERVIEW 
Smokehouse Summit is a two-day family-oriented event featuring a barbeque competition sanctioned 

by the Pacific Northwest Barbecue Association (PNWBA).  The purpose of the event is to create a 

regional attraction that promotes economic growth in the community and creates opportunities for 

local community groups to raise funds from sources outside the town.  Approximately 2,000-5,000 

persons are expected to visit North Plains over the course of the weekend.   

Funding for the event will be provided through cash and in-kind donations, entry fees paid by BBQ 

competitors, a split of proceeds from BBQ sales, car show participants and poker run riders.  In-kind 

donations like side dishes will be monetized through marketing at the event.   

Proceeds in excess of expenses are proposed to be distributed to three charitable groups:  North Plains 

Senior Center which operates the Meals on Wheels program, in 2014 the North Plains Police 

Department Hood to Coast running team which is raising funds for Provident Medical Foundation and on 

more limited scale funds will be set aside to subsidize North Plains residents participation in the 

Adventures Without Limits programs.  

Ancillary activities to the competition are live music and entertainment, kids area, a poker run, and car 

show.   

The public can participate in the event at no cost.  Participants in the poker run and car show will make a 

donation for participation.  Limited space will be provided to vendors and community groups. 

Beer and wine service will be allowed on both days.  Alcohol service will be limited to restricted area on 

Commercial Street between Main and 318th and areas supervised by private businesses. 

The sale of soda and waters has been restricted, and will be offered to community groups as a 

fundraising activity. 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 98



 

5  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

EVENT ORGANIZATION 

Smokehouse Summit 

 

 

  

Event Organizer

BBQ Coordinator

PNWBA Liaison

BBQ 
Competitors

Car show 
Coordinator

Car Show 
Volunteers

Registration 
Volunteers

Logistics 
Coordinator

Poker Run
Vendor 

Coordinator

Vendors

Cash 
Management

Volunteer 
Coordinator

Info Booth 
Volunteers

Ground Crews

Kids Activity 
Volunteers

Parking 
Volunteers

Alcohol Check 
Point Volunteers

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 98



 

6  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

EVENT SCHEDULE 
 

 

 
Saturday, 
June 7         Sunday, June 8       

 BBQ    Entertainment    BBQ Entertainment    

8:00 AM              
Car 

show     

9:00 AM                    

10:00 AM             Open    Music Kids  Beer  

11:00 AM BBQ       Poker    (sampling)      Area Sales 

12:00 AM Competitors       Run             

1:00 PM Arrive             Awards        

2:00 PM Optional meat        Auction             

3:00 PM competitions            Awards         

4:00 PM   Music   
Kids 
Area   Beer            

5:00 PM       Limited   Sales Clean up         

6:00 PM Sampling                     

7:00 PM             
Street 
Open         

8:00 PM     
Fire 
arts                 

9:00 PM                       

10:00 PM 
Quiet time enforced 
by PNWBA                     

 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 98



 

7  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Location 
  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 98



 

8  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

LOCATION OF EVENTS 
The barbeque competition will be staged on Commercial Street between Main and 318th.  Judging for 

the event will be located at the North Plains Senior Center 31450 NW Commercial Street. 

The Car show will be staged on Commercial between Main and 313th  

Kids area will be located on Main south of Commercial Street. 

The Poker Run will be staged in the North Plains Market parking lot.  Returning riders can park in the lot 

or on Commercial Street. 

The entertainment stage area will be located at Main and Commercial Streets. 

Parking will be available in the following locations:   

 Commercial Street between 318th and end both days.  Parking will be restricted between 313th 

and Main only on Sunday. 

 Hillcrest between Main and the end 

 Other parking options may include: 

 Oregon Canadian vacant land near Cottage and 321st 

 The vacant lot on Commercial near 311th 

 St. Edward and  

 the Thenhouse lot 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 98



 

9  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

    

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 98



 

10  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 98



 

11  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

Note:  The Saturday layout allows Commercial Street between 314th and Main to remain open all day 

Saturday.  Traffic will be required to detour to 314th or north on Main Street.  Access to the North Plains 

Market will be allowed from Main north of Kaybern Street.   

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 98



 

12  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

Note:  Commercial Street will be closed from 313th to Main from 7 a.m. to 3 p.m.  Once the car show 

ends the street will reopen.  Commercial Street is expected to be fully open by 5 p.m.   

Because of religious celebrations, Commercial Street between 311th and 313th will remain open all day 

Sunday.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 98



 

13  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

Street Closures 

 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 98



 

14  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 98



 

15  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 98



 

16  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JOB 

DESCRIPTIONS 
  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 98



 

17  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

EVENT ORGANIZER  

Name:   Jennifer Knowles 
Event Schedule:  Available Saturday and Sunday 

Organize event from beginning (roughly October) to end. Event Organizer receives a 

stipend to coordinate event activities in the months prior to the event. 

Tasks include: 

 Organize volunteer committee to plan and execute event, setting agendas, 

keeping minutes and ensuring compliance with City policies and state law 

 Appointment of coordinators to assist with management on the day of the 

event 

 Purchase of materials and services for the event 

 Develop, present and execute event promotion plan, including press 

releases, update of website, distribution of fliers at other car shows 

 Develop and administer budget under direction of the City Finance Manager 

and City Manager 

 Negotiate and present contracts for goods and services related to the event 

to City staff and City Council  

 Select performers for the event to provide live music and entertainment 

 Ensure OLCC plans and permits are completed and obtained 

 Oversee logistical coordination of the event 

 Complete CIS checklists for risk management 

 Contact businesses and residences on Commercial Street, 318th, 314th, 

313th, and 311th to ensure they are aware of Event layout and timing 

 Make presentation(s) to City Council, North Plains Chamber of Commerce and 

other community organizations  as needed 

 Update maps for Event 

 Work with PNWBA to sanction BBQ event 

o Establish qualifier designations 

o Enter into contract 

 Set goal for sponsorships and donations 

o Assist with solicitation of sponsorships and donations 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 98



 

18  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

o Coordinate efforts with North Plains Events Association, Senior 

Center, and Chamber of Commerce if possible to ensure sponsors 

and donors are not fatigued by frequent requests 

 Provide recognition to event supporters 

 Plans space needs for the entertainment acts  

 Selects and hires entertainment acts 

 Assemble a summary report on all activities including documentation of 

contacts and suggestions for next year 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 98



 

19  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

BBQ COORDINATOR 

Name:   Jason Specht 

Event Schedule: Available Saturday and Sunday 

Works with Event Organizer and PNWBA liaison from December through June on an as 

needed basis until day of event.  This position must be able to attend the majority of the 

event. 

Oversees coordination of BBQ event with sanctioning body (PNWBA for 2014). In 

2014 these activities include a variety of duties. 

 Ensure a person will be on site to oversee activity on day of event 

 Identify and secure potential sponsors for the event 

 Identify goods and equipment associated with the activities 

o Assist with obtaining donations of goods and equipment for activities 

o Arrange for acquisition/purchase of materials if needed 

 Identify volunteer needs to facilitate activities 

 Meet periodically with Event Organizer and planning committee 

 Assist in publicizing the event through various means 

 Provide summary report on activities including documentation of contacts and 

suggestions for next year 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 98



 

20  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

PNWBA LIAISON 

Name:  Derrick Williams (PNWBA Member) 

Event Schedule: Available Saturday and Sunday 

Works with Event Organizer from December through July on an as needed basis until 

day of event.  Most contact is conducted by phone and electronic correspondence, as 

liaison may be located outside of the area. 

The PNWBA Liaison is assigned to the event, after the PNWBA accepts the application 

for the event annually. 

 Conducts outreach on the part of PNWBA 

 Collects entry fees 

 Appoints Head Judges and makes arrangements for the same 

 Assembles panels of judges for competition 

 Provides assistance at load-in 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 98



 

21  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

CAR SHOW COORDINATOR 

Name: Mike 

Event Schedule: Available Sunday 

Works with Event Organizer from December through June on an as needed basis until 

day of event.  The coordinator must oversee operations on the morning of the event. 

This position ensures the logistics related to the management of the Car Show on 

the day of the event are executed appropriately.  This coordinator works in 

cooperation with Event organizer to promote the car show. 

Tasks include: 

 Planning space needs for the vehicle show and communicating those to the 
committee responsible for the layout of the event 

 Recruiting volunteers to assist drivers with placement of vehicles on the day 
of the event 

 Assist judges with rating vehicles, compiling results for announcements 

 Lead best pipes competition 

 Assist with the direction of traffic after the car show to minimize congestion 
and conflicts with pedestrians 

 Conduct raffles for benefit of local non-profit 

o 50/50 

o Car related prizes 

 Assist with the solicitation of donations for goody bags 

 Receives reports on entries the day in advance of the show 

 Oversee registration on day of event 

 Provide summary report on activities including documentation of contacts and 

suggestions for next year 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 98



 

22  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

Name:  Sierra White (City Staff) 

Event Schedule: Available Saturday and Sunday 

Works with Event Organizer from December through June on an as needed basis until 

day of event. Coordinator will have active role on the days of the event. 

Assist with the preparation of the grounds of the event working closely with other 
coordinators and City staff. 

 Inventory and identify equipment needs for event booths including: 

o Canopies, Tables, Chairs, Signs, Sandbags/weights, Barricades, Signs, 
Directional signs, No alcohol signs 

 Assist with planning of deployment of equipment for set up and removal on day 
of event 

o Signs, Barricades, Canopies, Tables and chairs, Banners, Bike racks  

 Identify volunteer needs associated with the setup, operation and tear down of the 
event 

 Contact local waste hauler and County to ensure appropriate large venue waste 
management  

o Garbage containers, Recycling containers 

 Assist Event Coordinator and City to coordinate of support services like: 

o Equipment purchases/loans, Placement of benches/picnic benches, Ash 
container, Sink  

 Ensure sanitation equipment is available 

o Order portable toilets and hand washing stations including at least one 
ADA accessible units 

o Order grey water container 

 Provide summary report on parade including documentation of equipment issues 
and suggestions for next year 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 98



 

23  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

POKER RUN COORDINATOR 

Name: Lyn Davis (Last Waterin’ Hole) 

Event Schedule: Available Saturday 

Works with Event Organizer from February through June on an as needed basis until 

day of event.  The coordinator must oversee operations on the morning of the event. 

This position ensures the logistics related to the management of the Poker Run on 

the day of the event are executed appropriately.  This coordinator works in 

cooperation with Event organizer to promote the Poker Run. 

Tasks include: 

 Planning space needs for the vehicle show and communicating those to the 
committee responsible for the layout of the event 

 Determine route of Poker Run, and provide maps to participants 

 Coordinate activities at Poker Run Stops  

 Conduct raffles for benefit of local non-profit 

o 50/50 

o High Hand/Low Hand 

 Oversee registration on day of event 

 Coordinates auction to benefit North Plains Senior Center 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 98



 

24  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

VENDOR COORDINATOR 

Name:  Martha DeBry (City Staff) 

Event Schedule: Available Saturday and Sunday 

Works with Event Organizer from February through June on an as needed basis until 

day of event.  Most of the work in concentrated in two weeks prior to the event.  Vendor 

coordinator will need to work the morning of the event to ensure all vendors are in 

place.   

Arranges for the assembly of vendors.  On-line registration has been used in 
previous years (Planetreg.com) 
 
Tasks include: 

 Set vendor recruitment goals: Craft vendors, Food vendors, Corporate vendors 

 Assist PNWBA with load in of competitors 

 Recruit vendors through a variety of media 

o Email (lists are available through City), Craigslist, Pinterest, Craft 
websites, Other event information, Non profit channels 

 

 Ensure vendor applications are reviewed to ensure a minimum of duplication, 
and that vendors are appropriate for the event 

 Encourage the participation of community groups and nonprofit organizations 

 Work with committee to identify space needs of vendors 

 Prepare information and applications to be used with vendors 

 Ensure payment of vendor fees occurs prior to event 

 Notify vendors or community group of selection 

 Assign vendors to spaces in weeks prior to event  

 Mark locations of event booths and activities 

 On day of event resolve problems if areas are overcrowded or conflicts arise 

 Provide summary report on vendor activities including documentation of contacts 

and suggestions for next year 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 98



 

25  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 

Name:  ______________________________________ 

Event Schedule: Should be available to respond to questions 

Works with Event Organizer from February through June on an as needed basis until 

day of event. This position must be able to attend the majority of the event. 

The volunteer coordinator ensures availability of people to assist with the activities and 

events. 

 Recruits volunteers to work on day of event. 

 Solicits participation by community groups, churches, and businesses.   

 Contacts individuals interested in volunteering 

 Assists other coordinators with fulfilling volunteer needs 

 Coordinates volunteer appreciation activities 

 Review emergency plan with other coordinators 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 98



 

26  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

 

 

 

VOLUNTEER 

ROLES 
  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 98



 

27  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

ALCOHOL CHECK POINT VOLUNTEER 

REPORTS TO VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR 

Estimated Need:  6 Saturday, 12 Sunday if visitors are permitted to walk around 

grounds freely.  No volunteers needed if alcohol is restricted to confined gardens 

Assists with the control of alcoholic beverages within the event grounds.  
Volunteers wear vests for identification and are equipped with radios.   
 
Shift is between 10 a.m. and 8 p.m. usually in 2-3 hour increments. 
 
Tasks include: 
 

 Prevent alcohol filled containers from leaving or entering the alcohol 
boundaries 

 Monitoring to ensure persons wearing wristbands are the only persons 
drinking alcohol 

 Contact information booth or police if persons do not respond to requests to 
stop or leave the site 

 Advise information booth or police if a person appears excessively 
intoxicated or in need of assistance 

 

Shifts  Check 
Point 1 

Commercial 
at 318th 

Check 
Point 2 

Commercial 
at Main 

Check 
Point 3 

Commercial 
at 314th 

Check 
Point 3 

Commercial 
at 313th 

Saturday, 12 – 2 pm     

Sat, 2 pm - 4 pm     

Sat, 4 pm - 6:30 pm     

Sat, 6:30 pm - 8:30 pm     

Sun, 10 am – 12 noon     

Sun, 12 noon – 2:30 pm     

Sun, 2:30 pm - 4:30 pm     

 

Note: 314th and 313th may not be staffed on Sunday if insufficient number of volunteers are available. 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 98



 

28  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

CAR SHOW VOLUNTEER 

REPORTS TO CAR SHOW COORDINATOR 

Estimated need: 4 on Saturday 

 
Assists with the placement of vehicles in car show.  Volunteers will be given vest 
to assist with their identification. 
 
Shift is between 7 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. 
 
Tasks include: 
 

 Direct traffic within car show area 

 Ensure adequate space exists between cars.  (Generally spaces are 15 
wide with approximately 6 feet between vehicles.  A spacing bar is used to 
assist with measurements.) 

 Assisting participants who require special access for walking or parking 
vehicles 

 Direct participants to registration to ensure proper documentation of vehicle 
occurs 

 

Car show volunteers receive a complimentary registration in the show. 

Role 7 am – 10:30 am 

Direction  

Parking  

Parking  

Parking  

 

 
 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 98



 

29  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

CASH MANAGER 
Estimated need: 1 on Saturday, 1 on Sunday 
 
This job has very high responsibility counting cash and arranging deposits.  This 
work is assigned to City employees. 
 

 Money collected at registration booths, information booth and various other 
stations will be brought to City Hall throughout the day. 

 Assign person to pay performers on day of event 

o Performers will be instructed to meet with coordinator after their 
performance. 

 Funds must be counted by two or more persons, and then the money 
deposited in the safe at City Hall.   

o A paper documenting the nature of the deposit should be included 
with the funds, which should be placed in individual bags for 
safekeeping until counted by Finance Manager on following business 
day. 

 The schedule for collecting funds is as follows: 

o Car registration: 10:30 a.m. Sunday 

o Vendor registration: 10:00 a.m. Saturday 

o Information booth: 2 p.m., 6:00 p.m. and 8 p.m. Saturday and 
Sunday 

 Only the following persons are designated to manage cash on the day of 
the event: 

  

 Cash Managers 

Saturday  

Sunday  

  

 

 

 
 
 
  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 98



 

30  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

CHILDREN’S AREA VOLUNTEER 

REPORTS TO ACTIVITES COORDINATOR 

Estimated Need: 4 Saturday, 6 on Sunday 

Shifts are from 10 a.m. until close of event. 

Guaranteed fun!  Be prepared to be a kid again! 

 Check-in at information booth 

 Assist coordinators with children's activities: 

 Some set-up 

 Assisting kids with activities like: 

o face painting 

o bouncing 

 Bounce house monitors must ensure safety of children by following 
guidelines printed on front of bouncers 

 Please train your replacement 

 At the end of the day, help clean-up area, pack boxes. If not too heavy, please 
bring to City Hall. 

 
This is NOT childcare - parents will attend 

 

Shift Bounce House Face painting 

Sat, 12 noon – 2 pm   

Sat, 2 pm – 4 pm   

Sat, 4 pm – 6 pm   

Sat, 6 pm – 8 pm   

Sun, 10 am – 12 noon   

Sun, 12 noon – 2:30 pm   

Sun, 2:30 pm – 4 pm   

 
 
 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 98



 

31  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

GROUNDS CREW 

REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

Estimate: 4 Saturday, and 4 Sunday 

 
Shifts are during event. 
 
Active job but low pressure.  Assist with keeping event area tidy.   
 
Gloves will be provided, together with maintenance equipment and supplies.  A 
golf cart will be available to transport trash.   
 

 Check-in at information booth 

 Pick up trash, remove full trash bags from cans and replace liners 

 Bring full bags to dumpster, located at _____________. Place trash directly 
into bin.   

 Place tied bag of recyclables next to trash bin. 

 Portable toilets -  Restocking of toilet paper may be needed towards ladder 
half of day. 

 All supplies will be at __________________. 

 During your shift, continually rotate around the site, inspect all trash cans, 
remove and replace full liners and bring to dumpster. 

 Please train your replacement. 

 At the end of the day, please pack-up items and leave stacked at City Hall. 

 

Shift Crewmember 1 Crewmember 2 

Sat, 2 pm – 4 pm   

Sat, 5 pm to 7 pm   

Sun, 11:30 am – 1 pm   

Sun, 1 pm – 3 pm   

 

 
  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 98



 

32  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

INFORMATION BOOTH VOLUNTEER 

REPORTS TO EVENT COORDINATOR 

Estimated Need: 3 Saturday, and 3 Sunday 

Shifts are from 3 p.m. until close of event Saturday and 7 am to close Sunday.  
 
Sitting in the shade in the center of the event, answering questions about the event 
and every subject imaginable 

 Information booth will be supplied with event information and plenty of maps 
and schedules. 

 Check-in volunteers 

o Provide water, radios, vests etc… 

o Direct to appropriate location 

 Assist with sales of event items 

 Booth will have a lists of: 

o Event artists and their contact information if needed 

o City staff available 

o Emergency information 

 Provide basic first aid supplies, band aids, ointments etc… 

o Only render assistance for which are qualified/certified 

o Emergence response personnel will be available throughout the day 
if assistance is needed 

o A portable defibrillator is available for emergency situations 

 Contact emergency responders if needed 

 Train replacement staff/volunteers 

 At the end of the day, pack-up items and leave at City Hall. 

 

Shifts  Member 1 Member 2, if 
available 

Sat, 12 noon to 3 pm   

Sat, 3 pm - 6 pm   

Sat, 6 pm - 8 pm   

Sun, 10 am – 12 noon   

Sun, 12 noon – 2:30 pm   

Sun, 2:30 pm - 4:30 pm   

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 98



 

33  Smokehouse Summit 2014 
 

PARKING VOLUNTEER 

REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

Estimated Need:  8 on Saturday and 6 on Sunday 

Shifts are from the start of event to close. 
 
Parking is organized to minimize disruption in residential areas. 
 

 Guide people to park vehicles in orderly rows.  
 

 Collect fee for preferred parking, if applicable 
 

 Drive shuttles to and from parking areas 
 
Location of preferred parking:  _________________________ 
 
Other parking: 
 _____________________ 
 _____________________ 
 Street parking 
 
Vendor Parking:  _______________________ 
 

Shifts  Member 1 Member 2 

Sat, 12 – 2 pm   

Sat, 2 – 4 pm   

Sat, 4 pm - 6:30 pm   

Sat, 6:30 pm - 8:30 pm   

Sun, 10 am – 12 noon   

Sun, 12 noon – 2:00 pm   

Sun, 2:00 pm - 4:00 pm   

 
 

  

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 98



 

S 

CAR SHOW REGISTRATION VOLUNTEERS 

REPORTS TO CAR SHOW OR VENDOR COORDINATOR 

Estimated Need: 3 on Sunday 

 
Shifts are from 7:00 a.m. until 10 a.m. 
 
This job receives payments for car registrations, which are mostly cash payments.  
 

 Monitor safety of vehicles entering the event grounds 

 Check-in vendors or cars ensuring they have paid their fees.   

o Accept payment if needed 

 Direct cars for placement  

 Transfer funds to City staff for counting and safekeeping 

 

Registration located at: Main Street and Kaybern 

 

Role 8 am – 10:30 am 

Registrar 1  

Registrar 2  

Registrar 3  

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 98



 

S 

SET-UP CREW  

REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

Estimated Need: 2 on Saturday 

 
Shift is from 10:00 a.m. until noon. 
 
Active physical job setting up the event areas. 
 

 You will be instructed by the Logistics Coordinator as to what is necessary. 

 Tasks may include: 

o Setting up pop up tents 

o Moving tables and chairs 

o Moving barricades 

o Placement of sand bags/weights on pop up tents 

o Assisting with moving boxes 

o Placing signs in event grounds 

o Driving to place signs outside of event area 

 
 

Shift Crewmember 1 Crewmember 2 

Sat, 10 am – 12 noon   

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 98



 

S 

TEAR-DOWN CREWS 

REPORTS TO LOGISTICS COORDINATOR 

Estimated Need: 2 on Sunday 

 
Shifts begins at end of event until complete (About 2 hours) 
 
Tearing down all event equipment and materials at end of the day and delivering 
them to area inside Public Works area at City Hall.  Crews will work in teams of two 
or more. 
 

 Check-In at information booth to receive instructions 

 Collect equipment including but are not limited to:  

o Signs 

o Popup tents 

o Tables 

o Chairs 

o Boxes and bins from various event areas 

o Barricades 

 Load equipment into volunteer truck(s) and deliver to Public Works yard 

 Trash goes directly into dumpster. Breakdown trash boxes to extent possible.  

 Recycle cans and bottles place tied bag of recyclables – cans and bottles - next 
to trash bin. 

 Clean all debris from site 

 

Shift Crewmember 1 Crewmember 2 

Sun, 3:30 pm – 5:30 pm   

 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 98



 

S 

VOLUNTEER SOURCES 
 

Local and regional volunteer sources 

Source Contact Notes 

Intel   

North Plains Senior Center   

Nike   

Recology Portland   

United Way   

Comcast   

PGE   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 98



 

S 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL 

INFORMATION 
  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 98



 

S 

PNWBA EVENT SANCTIONING INFORMATION 
 

Website:  www.pnwba.com  

The Pacific Northwest Barbeque Association is a non-profit organization 501(c)(3), 

whose stated purpose is to provide education about barbecue. In support of its mission, 

it holds classes and barbecue contests throughout the Western States and Canada. 

The organization has about 700 members (although it is not necessary to be a member 

to participate in any of its events). PNWBA sanctions approximately 40 events per year, 

which includes classes for new cooks, judging courses and contests.  

The PNWBA is one of several BBQ contest sanctioning bodies operating in the United 

States and Canada. We generally sanction events in the Pacific Northwest 

(Washington, Oregon, Idaho, Montana, Alaska, California) and in western Canada, but 

we are not limited to these areas. Established in 1991, the PNWBA is the second oldest 

BBQ association in the nation, with a significant base of cooks, a support system for 

organizers, and a reputation for excellence in judging and organizing.  

PNWBA members have participated and judged in many national events such as the 

Jack Daniels World Invitational, The American Royal and the Great American BBQ 

contests.  PNWBA cooks have had great success winning awards in these events.  

TYPE OF EVENT:  Two Day Standard These are the main competitions, featuring 

pork, brisket, ribs and chicken. They require the teams arrive the day prior to judging so 

they can cook throughout the night. If the event gets enough teams to participate, it 

becomes a qualifier for national and international events (15 in the first year of the event 

and 25 for the second and subsequent years of the event).  

PRIZE MONEY:  The Pacific Northwest BBQ Association does not procure prize money 

for events. The event must have a guaranteed source and that amount must be 

guaranteed in writing 70 days prior to the event for the PNWBA to proceed with 

scheduling and advertising the event. The PNWBA will not continue to sanction the 

event without this prize money guarantee.   

Prize money at a standard full event cook ranges from $3,500 to $35,000 with an 

average at about $7,500.  (North Plains is proposed at $5,000) This total prize pool 

pays out each of the four main categories to at least 6th place, plus Reserve 

Grand Champion and Grand Champion prizes. For competitions having more than 30 

teams there is also a Reserve Champion prize (3rd place overall). Sample payout 

schedules are available from the PNWBA.  

PNWBA PROMOTION AND MARKETING:  A 10’ x 10’ space be made available for 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 98

http://www.pnwba.com/


 

S 

the PNWBA to set up an information booth where we can provide information about 

barbecue and sell PNWBA promotional materials.   

Cross marketing for the event is required to use the official PNWBA logo on all contest 

materials, including but not limited to; promotional items, website, all electronic media, 

advertisements, banners, signage, shirts and all other contest materials. The event logo 

will be used on PNWBA promotions and communications.  

LOCATION:   Teams must have set-up space measuring a minimum 10‘x 15’per team 

and larger teams using trailer pits requiring a 20‘x 20‘ space (strongly preferred). 

More space is required for some teams using larger trailer pits or those cooking out of a 

large equipment trailer.  

Judging and meeting area requires a space with power, tables (8ft) and chairs. This 

may be either indoors or outdoors with a sturdy tent. The tent must have some way to 

block viewing of turn-ins from the judges (some sort of side or smaller tent). The size of 

the area needed is based on the number of teams attending your event. For an event 

that has 12 teams, the judging space needs to be at least 20’ x 20’ and larger events 

need more space as additional judges are necessary based on the number of teams 

cooking the event. If this area is outside it should not be right next to the cooks as 

smoke in the judging area interferes with accurate judging. In addition, the judging area 

should be away from any stage or speakers (loud area) as judges need to be able to 

hear instructions.  When planning space, consider the fire access lanes that may be 

required when getting the fire permit.  

PERMITS: Event coordinator is responsible for researching which permits are required 

for and procuring those permits, inspections etc. This may include, but is not limited, to 

fire permits, Health Department permits, fire extinguisher inspection, council use 

approval and similar. A copy of the Fire Permit must be provided to the PNWBA.  

PUBLIC FOOD/TASTING:  Although the barbecue competition meats are prepared for 

the judges, there are instances where leftover food may be made available to the public. 

This is dependent on a number of factors such as the requirements of the local Health 

Department, the nature and size of the event.  The ultimate decision on whether to 

participate in the sampling is up to the individual teams, and no guarantee can be made 

on the participation levels for sampling.  

Public food/tasting options  

 Competition leftovers cut into small bites and offered for people to taste. This 

helps to build interest and good will with event visitors.  

 Competition leftovers and extra cooked meat offered for sale by cooks.  This 

helps cooks offset the cost of competing and travelling to remote event locations.  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 98



 

S 

 Competition leftovers and extra cooked meat (extra meat is sometimes provided 

by organizer), offered for sale by cooks, using scrip sold by a charity (or venue) 

that keeps a portion of the money taken in.   Raises money for the charity and 

helps cooks offset the cost of competing (entry fee, meat, travel).   

Sometimes a People’s Choice competition is held in conjunction with the public tasting 

options listed above, adding another element of competition and enhanced public 

involvement.  

ANCILLARY EVENTS:  Extra Categories - Usually held on the first day of a two-day 

event this competition gives cooks an opportunity to compete in non-traditional 

barbecue contests like chili, Dutch oven, desserts, pizza, finger foods, seafood, salmon, 

and similar. This is a good opportunity to highlight sponsors products (product can be 

donated for use in contest, sponsors can judge).  

Whole Hog - Although uncommon in the Pacific Northwest, this is a popular class of 

barbecue competition in other areas of the country but brings a lot of interest to cooks. 

This would offer a different and interesting dimension at the right event.  

Cooking Class - The PNWBA teaches a beginner Pit Master classes and demo type 

cooking classes. One could be held prior to your scheduled event. This may draw 

interested cooks into competition and increase participation in remote locations.  

Judging Class - Instruction on PNWBA methods of judging barbecue may be held prior 

to your scheduled event. This creates a pool of qualified judges where few or none may 

exist, and generally raises public interest.  

 OPTIMIZING THE EVENT:  It should be understood that the cooking teams generally 

cook about $200+ worth of meat, pay an entry fee, buy wood, sauces, rubs, fuel to 

travel to the event, and more often than not stay in a hotel one or two nights. It’s a major 

expense for a team to come and compete, often totaling over a thousand dollars.  With 

so many competitions available to choose from now, it is necessary to consider how you 

want to appeal to the potential teams. This may include good prize money, subsidized 

entry fees, or taking part in a great “feel good” event.  From PNWBA member 

discussion forums we would like to share comments made by teams for your 

consideration.  

What are the top 5 reasons for choosing a particular barbecue competition?  

1. Distance… how close is it to home?  

2. Entry Fee…how much it cost to enter?  

3. Reputation… family friendly, organizers take care of the teams?  

4. Pay-Outs … prize money (comparable to entry fees)?  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 98



 

S 

5. Location…easy access, level sites, grass versus asphalt?  

What are the main amenities you look for in a competition?  

1. Water…delivered or close proximity to site.  

2. Power…clean, reliable and close proximity to site.  

3. Ice…available on site or delivered (free or reasonable cost)  

4. Trash pick-up---continuous on site pick up.  

5. Parking…on site for RV, trailer, or truck (or very close)  

6. Port a Potty’s…plenty of them…clean and well serviced  

7. Communications…clear, concise and timely with the promoter, sponsors, 

sanctioning body, etc.  

8. Site Boundaries…clearly marked and assigned according to team requests as to 

size needed. Boundary lines strictly enforced.  

9. Noise…quiet hours strictly enforced, no loud music.  

10. Disposal…gray water, grease, and ash disposal available and close proximity to 

site.  

WHAT THE PNWBA ALL INCLUSIVE SERVICE MEANS:  The event coordination 

includes the management of teams prior to and on the day of the event including the 

registration form and entry fee collection. The cost of the BBQ Competition - cost of 

head judge transportation, lodging, trophies, judging supplies, insurance, etc – is 

covered by the money collected from the teams.  

The PNWBA will provide…  

 Competition team site, safety and meat inspection on set-up  

 Conduct cooks meeting and judges meetings  

 Provide and distribute judging supplies to cooks and judges (turn-in boxes, 

paper, pens, napkins, forms, etc)  

 Supervise the entire judging process  

 Enforce PNWBA rules and regulations at the event  

 Verify and distribute scores at the end of the event – and help distribute trophies 

and ribbons.  

 The board will appoint a Board contact/coordinator  

 Trophies and Ribbons purchased by PNWBA  

 Marketing to teams:  Will create and post event flyer on website  

 Team registration:   Registration and money collected by PNWBA  

 Insurance: PNWBA provides – If needed PNWBA can provide a certificate.  

 Judging: Head judges(s) to staff and run the event  

 1 head judge – 1 to 19 teams  

 2 head judges – 20 to 39 teams  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 98



 

S 

 3 head judges – 40 to 54 teams  

 4 head judges – 55 to 70 teams  

 5 head judges – 71 + teams  

Head Judge(s) Expenses are paid by PNWBA directly to Head Judges from entry 
fees.  When more teams are added, Board will determine the number of HJs. 
Head Judge recruits, communicates with and registers judges for the event. 

 Judging System;  Use of PNWBA’s proprietary scoring system and rules for the 

event. This includes computer, program, barcodes, scanner and printer.  

 Certified Judges are volunteers recruited by PNWBA 

 Judging Supplies: PNWBA provides   

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 98



 

S 

PNWBA SITE REQUIREMENTS 
 

The following facilities/services MUST be provided by the City as venue/organizer…  

Need Notes 

Ash disposal (with covers)  Rented 

Garbage disposal  Garbarino 

Grease collection  Rented 

Grey water disposal  Rented 

Restrooms (or portable toilets) 
appropriate to the number of teams and 
attendees of the event. If portable 
toilets are used you must provide hand 
wash facilities (with pumped or running 
water).  

Rented 

Running water   

Covered area with power, tables, chairs 
(preferably indoors) for judging  

Senior Center 

Security for overnight events  
 

Reserve officer assignment 

Provision of ice, either free or delivered 
at reasonable cost.  
 

North Plains Market has ice. 

Power, for night lighting and required for 
some pits (if power is not provided the 
venue must allow teams to use small 
portable generators).  
 

Competitors may bring portable 
generators 
 

Parking for trucks, cars and trailers that 
are not part of the team set-up (for cooks 
and judges)  
 

Parking on-street in area adjacent to 
competition.   
Judges should park on 314th or Kaybern 

Space for RV’s either onsite or near the 
event (closer to the contest is the best). 
Some events allow RVs in the cooking 
venue.  
 

Spaces on 318th and 321st 

Gift bags with goodies for teams and 
judges.   
 

 

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 98



 

S 

REGISTRATION INFORMATION 
 

BBQ competitors:  

Entry without sampling:  $150 entry 

Entry with sales $150 entry + 20% of sales 

Beer Vendor 20% with minimum of $250 

Booth Vendor  

  

  

  

 

 

 

PURSE INFORMATION 
Tentative $5,024.  Additional funds anticipated. 

 

Smokehouse Summit Cash and Prizes    

         

 Sunday 1  2  3  4 

1 Grill $379 Grill $379 Grill $379 Grill $379 

  Trophy $150 Trophy $150 Trophy $150 Trophy $150 

2 Trophy $100 Trophy $100 Trophy $100 Trophy $100 

3 Trophy $75 Trophy $75 Trophy $75 Trophy $75 

4 Ribbon   Ribbon   Ribbon   Ribbon   

5 Ribbon   Ribbon   Ribbon   Ribbon   

6 Ribbon   Ribbon   Ribbon   Ribbon   

 

Sunday Grand  Reserve 

Grill $999     

Trophy $150 Trophy $300 

 
 

Saturday    

Brisket   Grill 759 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 98



 

S 

Wings Ribbon TBD   

Potato 
Salad Ribbon TBD   

 

  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 98



 

S 

2014 SMOKEHOUSE SUMMIT PROCEEDS DISTRIBUTION 
Proceeds are distributed after City costs have been reimbursed.  

 

 

 

  

Proceeds

generated by

Poker Run & 
Associated 

Events go to

Senior Center

Car Show & 
Associated 

Events go to

Senior Center

BBQ Entry Fees 
go to

AWL to cap

Hood to Coast

Senior Center

Vendor Fees 

(Beer, etc.)      go to

AWL to cap

Hood to Coast

Senior Center

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 98



 

S 

SPONSORS 
 

Sponsors underwrite the cost of the event.   

Sponsor List: 

Sponsor Level In-kind Cash Notes: 

Green Mountain  x  Grills 

Oregon Canadian  x x Trophy sponsor 

Reser’s  x  Potato salad, cole slaw, beans 

Last Waterin’ Hole  x  Advertising 

A1JumpWonder  x  Bouncehouses 

Hillsboro Hops  x  Tickets, hats, balls 

Greg Baurer Flooring   x  

Allstate    Amount TBD 

Pumpkin Ridge    Amount TBD + inkind 

     

     

     

     

     

Adventures without Limits     

Meals on Wheels     

Provident Medical Foundation     

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 9B     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  March 17, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: North Plains Chamber of Commerce and the Annual Ice Cream Social 

Request:  Council consider moving venue of the 2014 Ice Cream Social to Commercial 
Street. 
 
Background:  Since 2000, the City has sponsored an Ice Cream Social. For the last 
four years it has been held on the first Tuesday in June at Jessie Mays Community Hall.  
Typically ice cream is served indoors.  The event has been used to provide community 
outreach on topics as diverse as police services, planning, library summer reading and 
capital project.  Last years’ event featured music outdoors and the North Plains Farmers 
Market provided strawberries for the event last year.  We have between 4-10 volunteers 
assist at the event scooping ice cream and cleaning tables.  In recent years, staff has 
planned the event.  The social is one of the least labor intensive events the City 
conducts.  The event regularly attracts several hundred residents of all ages. 
 
The Chamber of Commerce and Farmers Market are requesting that the venue of the 
Ice Cream Social be changed from Jessie Mays to Commercial Street in order to 
promote the Farmers Market on Thursday evenings.  Their suggestion is have a long 
table set at the middle of the street.  In the event rain is predicted for the day, the 
Chamber would arrange for tents to be set up in the street.  The Farmers Market 
intends to provide strawberries again this year (through a grant offered by New Seasons 
market.)  
 
Fiscal Impact:  The City has funded the ice cream social since it began, and the cost 
has decreased in recent years.  Through staff contacts the cost of ice cream has been 
lowered and the Farmers Market provides strawberries.  Advertising is conducted 
through the newsletter, banners and the website versus more costly postcards and 
posters used in the past.  The banner for the event would need to be modified if the 
event was changed to Thursday and downtown, which would be a nominal cost. 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Council consider moving the 2014 15th Annual Ice Cream Social in 
support of the Chamber and Farmers Market.  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 98



.-^-..-.

-,
-.

/-

-
-

NORTH PLAINS AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
ins, OR . Fax 647-2838

NORTH PLAINS
City to the Sunset ;

March 7,2014

Mr. David Hatcher, Mayor
and City Councilors

City of North Plains
31360 NW Commercial St.
North Plains, OR 97133

Dear Mayor Hatcher and Councilors:

On February 18, 2014, you graciously supported The North Plains Chamber of Commerce's and
North Plains Farmer's Market's (NPFM) request to operate The North Plains Thursday Marketplace@
(Marketplace) in 2014 through your approval of Resolution No. 1816 (Attachment A).

Our initial request to you dated February 13,2014, included a request:

'to consider changing the date and location of the Annual lce Cream Social, currently
scheduled for Tuesday, June 3'd, to Thursday, June Sth, and moving it to Commercial Street in
the middle of the market."

When we testified before the Gouncil on February 18th, the lce Gream Socialwas not part of
the discussion. We respectfully ask for your consideration of our request at your March 17,
2014, meeting.

During preliminary discussions of the Marketplace with City Manager Martha DeBry in December,
2013, we realized the 2014lce Cream Social was scheduled for Tuesday, June 3'd, two days before
the proposed opening date of the Marketplace. At that time we discussed the opportunity of
combining the two events to bring more people to both events. This would provide a great
introduction of the Marketplace.

Since then the Chamber Events Committee has outlined the structure of Marketplace and determined
there would be ample space to set up tables and chairs for the lce Cream Social down the middle of
Commercial Street with vendors set up on both the north and south sides of the street (Attachment
B). The Marketplace organizers would work with the City in providing this new venue for the lce
Cream Social.

www. northplainschamb erofcommerce. org

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 61 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9B



March 7, 2013 
Mr. David Hatcher, Mayor 
  and City Councilors 
City of North Plains 
 

Page 2 of 2 
NPCC Events Committee\Letter to City Council Re ice Cream Social 03-07-2014 

As an additional item of note, in 2012 and 2013 the City asked the NPFM to provide the strawberries 
for the Ice Cream Social.  The NPFM did provide the strawberries for the 2012 event out of their very 
limited budget, but were unable to do so in 2013.  When planning for 2014, the NPFM Board 
submitted a grant request to New Seasons Market for funding the NPFM and included a specific 
request for funds to purchase the strawberries.  The grant approved by New Seasons on February 1, 
2014, included $200 specifically for the Ice Cream Social. 
 
Representatives from the North Plains Chamber and the North Plains Farmer’s Market will be in 
attendance at the Council’s March 17th meeting to provide any additional information the Council 
requires. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of our request. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Russ R. Sheldon 
President 
NORTH PLAINS CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, INC. 
 
Attachments as stated. 
 
ec: Martha DeBry, City of North Plains, City Manager 
 North Plains Chamber of Commerce Board 
 North Plains Farmer’s Market Board 
 North Plains Chamber of Commerce Events Committee 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 62 of 98



RESOLUT:ON NO. 1816

A RESOLUTION OF THE C]TY COUNCIL OF THE CIry OF NORTH PLAINS,
OREGON, AUTHORIZING REQUESTS BY TH3 2014FARMERS MARKiiI , 

..;.

WHEREAS, the North Plains Farmers Market has operated since July 201 1; and',

WHEREAS, the North Plains Chamberof Commerce is seeking to pa(nerwith the
North Plains Farmers Market Board to develop a market on Thurs'da-y evenings that will
be integrated with Commercial Street businesses; and

WHEREAS, the Farmers Market will operale under the Chamber of Commerce,
and not the North Plains Senior Center; and

WHEREAS, the Chamber of Commerce has made the following requests:

' Close Commercial Street between 31370 NW Commercial Street (Fire
Station) and 31580 NW Commercial St (North Plains Market) between 4 pm
and g pm Thursday nights between June and August.

r Provide City support of the Market by providing portable toilets, tables and
chairs, trash pickup, use of electricai drops; anO Uanicades, as well as
assisting with hanging signs;

' Allow amplified music be permitted between the hours of S p.m. and B p.m.

' Waive the fees associated wilh street closure, music amplification and
public assemblies; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Code provides the City with the authority to regutate
noise (amplified music), close streets, authorize public assemblies and waire fees;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOW$:

o Waives allfees associated with the Farmers Market

' Authorizes closure of Commercial Slreet between 31320 NW Commercial
Street (Fire Station) and 31580 NW Commercial St (North plains nfrif.*t)
between 4 pm and g pm Thursday nights between June and August.

' Authorizes staff to use City personnel and equipment resources in support
of the farmers market;

Page 1 of 2 - Resolution No. ,1816

Adopted: February 18, 2A1 4
Page I of2

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 63 of 98



. Authorizes amplified music be permitted between the hours of s p.m. and gp.m. i -

. Requires the Chamber oJ Commerce to provide proof of insurance for the
special event in a minimllm amount of 91,000,000. ," 

.1 _

INTRODUCEO AND ADOPTED this 18th day of February, 2A14. .n

ctw OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON

BY: Os-
David Hatcher, Mayor

Page 1 of 2 - Resolution No. 1816
Adopted: February 18, 2A14
Page? of 2

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 64 of 98



16-18 Regular Vendors 5-6 Regular Vendors 9-11 Extra Vendors

2 Regular Vendors 10-12 Regular Vendors 
(leave space for NPSC entry)

4 Extra Vendors

Abbey Creek Serving Area

Rogue Serving Area Entertainment Seating Area

ATTACHMENT B
The North Plains Thursday Marketplace

3/7/2014

Map with Ice Cream Social on June 5, 2014

Barrier can be moved west if 
extra vendor space not needed

Regular Vendors-33 min/38 max

Extra Vendors-13 min/15 max

Ice Cream Social Tables/Chairs

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 65 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 66 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9C

mreh
Typewritten Text
(March 17, 2014)



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 67 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 68 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 69 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 70 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 71 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 72 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 73 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 74 of 98



Water Bill Expenses 2014 
 Moonlight In-House Notes 

TOTAL $665.26 $756.50  
Labor    

File transfer $7.17   

Print Bills  $43.01  1.50 hours Acct Clerk 
Separate overdues  $7.17  .25 hours Acct Clerk 
Mail drop  $7.17  .25 hours Acct Clerk 

Total Labor $7.17 $57.35  

    

Printing    

Paper (810 accounts) Inc. $32.40  
Copies ($0.07 per copy) - bill Inc. $56.70  
Copies ($0.07 per copy) - 3 page insert $369.00 $170.10  
Return Envelopes Inc. N/A  
Postage ($0.49/unit) $289.09 $429.95  
Volunteers stuffing envelopes N/A $10.00  

Total Printing $658.09 $699.15  

    

Additional cost    

Online Statement viewing $126.12 N/A  
    

Newsletter Expenses    

6 page $369.00   

8 page $486.00   

10 page $577.50   
 

Agenda Item No: 9C 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 75 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 9D   

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

Date:   March 12, 2014 

To:  City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Resolution No. 1822 approving the termination of the temporary 
reductions of System Development fees 

 
Request:   Council approve Resolution No. 1822 approving the early expiration of the 
incentive program that was created to encourage in-fill development of single family 
homes. 
 
Background:  North Plains had approximately 50 vacant lots within existing 
neighborhoods, and another 95 properties that could have been partitioned to provide 
additional legal lots for single family homes.  These lots were spread throughout the City 
in all residential zones. 
 
Staff had proposed a tiered incentive program to build homes on vacant lots and new 
lots for single family homes that were not part of a subdivision of three or more 
dwellings. The program was proposed to cover a three year term implementing the 
incentives in phases of 75% reduction in 2013; 50% reduction in 2014; and 25% 
reduction in 2015. 
 
In December of 2012 Council approved an incentive program to encourage this 
development of in-fill housing.  The purpose of the incentive was to encourage building 
to increase the property tax base within the existing City limits.  For every additional 
$100,000 in assessed valuation the City/Urban Renewal Agency was able to anticipate 
an additional $2,170 in property taxes.   
 
The program proved to be successful but it is believed to have run its course. Staff is 
proposing an early termination of this incentive program and have it sunset on 
December 31, 2014. This would eliminate the last year of the program that was 
schedule for a 25% reduction in SDC costs. 
 
Recommendation:  Council adopt Resolution No.1822 approving the termination of the 
temporary reductions of System Development fees. 
 
Sample Motion:  I move to approve Resolution No. 1822. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 76 of 98



 

Resolution No. 1822 
Adopted: March 17, 2014 
Terminating SDC Reductions 

 RESOLUTION NO. 1822 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, TERMINATING TEMPORARY REDUCTIONS IN SYSTEM 

DEVELOPMENT FEES  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of North Plains strives to have a healthy balance of 
residential, commercial and industrial activity to ensure a high quality of life within the 
community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City was able to encourage infill development with the adoption of 
infill incentive with Resolution No. 1777; and 
 
 WHEREAS, economic conditions have improved in recent years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined incentives may not be needed to further 
encourage construction of infill housing. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, 
OREGON, as of December 31, 2014, the temporary reduction of System Development 
Fees for Water, Parks, Streets, and Street Fee in Lieu shall expire. 
 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of March 2013. 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 77 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 78 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 79 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 9G 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date: March 11, 2014 

To: City Council 

From: Martha DeBry, City Manager 

Subject: Discussion of Medical Marijuana Ordinance  

Request:  Council consider its position on adopting a moratorium on the siting of 

marijuana dispensaries. 

Background: State law recently enacted allows medical marijuana facilities to be 

located in areas zoned as for commercial, industrial or mixed use.  Key provisions in 

State law are: 

 No dispensary may open or operate within 1,000 feet of a primary or secondary 

school 

 No dispensary may open or operate within 1,000 feet of another dispensary. 

Applications for competing locations will be processed on a first-come, first-

served basis 

 Dispensaries must be located only in areas zoned commercial, industrial or 

agriculture.  

 All medical marijuana distributed through dispensaries must be tested for 

pesticides, mold and mildew, and may not be distributed if contaminants are 

found 

 There must be a strong security system in place 

 All product brought into and dispensed from the facility must be accounted for 

 The Oregon Health Authority will visit and inspect each dispensary and audit its 

financial records at least once a year 

For North Plains, the 1,000 feet of a primary school extends to the west and north of 

Main and Hillcrest, and west and north of 318th and Commercial.   

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 80 of 98



The law also prohibits location within 1,000 feet of schools classified as “Career – 

private, proprietary, professional, technical, business or other schools of instruction, 

organizations or persons offering any instruction or training for the purpose or purported 

purpose of instruction, training or preparing persons for any profession at a physical 

location attended primarily by minors.”  If the City can define pre-schools or Montessori 

schools as career school then technically no place on Commercial Street and most of 

Glencoe are prohibited from hosting dispensaries.   The remaining locations where 

dispensaries can be located are industrial areas to the west of 318th/320th and south of 

Commercial or north of West Union. 

 

Many local agencies are struggling with interpreting this new rule, and incorporating it 

into existing zoning ordinances.  At present it is not an outright permitted use within the 

City, but would have to be considered as a conditional use.  Twenty one (21) Oregon 

Cities (including Cave Junction, Clatskanie, Culver, Dallas, Fairview, Falls City, Grants 

Pass, Gresham, Harrisburg, Hermiston, John Day, Madras, Medford, Redmond, Sandy, 

Scappoose, Stayton, Toledo, Wilsonville, Winston and Wood Village) have implemented 

rules that effectively ban medical marijuana dispensaries, and another fourteen (14) 

have implemented moratoriums including Baker City, Beaverton, Coos Bay, Cornelius, 

Dayton, Florence, Gladstone, Hillsboro, Milwaukie, North Bend, Phoenix, Tualatin, 

Tigard and Sherwood.  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 81 of 98



Under Senate Bill 1531 local governments have until May 1, 2014 to enact a 

moratorium, which must expire by May 1, 2015. 

The City of Hillsboro recently adopted an ordinance similar to the draft Ordinance 

included in the Council packet.  This version provides a moratorium for 240 days versus 

120 days.  If adopted, the North Plains ordinance would need to be updated in the 

future. 

In February, Washington County Law Enforcement Council, on which Police Chief Bill 

Snyder serves as Vice Chair, provided the following announcement:   

"It is the position of the Washington County Law Enforcement Council 

(LEC) to oppose the establishment of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries 

within the city and county limits of Washington County. The possession, 

distribution, and manufacture of marijuana, although permissible under 

provisions of the Oregon Medical Marijuana Program (OMMP) and related 

statutes and rules, are a violation of Federal Law. 

While the member agencies of LEC will consistently and fairly enforce 

established laws and ordinances of our communities, we believe the 

proliferation of marijuana use and availability outside the scope of the 

OMMP is a serious public health concern and has negative implications for 

the welfare of our community. We believe expanding the availability of 

marijuana, even under the auspices of the OMMP, will harm the general 

welfare of our community because of the significant potential to increase 

marijuana use among our youth, place a higher burden on emergency room 

care, drug treatment and other health care systems, increase marijuana-

related exposure cases, and increase illegal interstate drug trafficking. 

Marijuana impairment doubles the risk of deadly traffic crashes and is a 

major causal factor in high school dropouts. 

We believe medical marijuana dispensaries will have additional potential 

negative secondary effects on the community. These secondary effects 

include, but are not limited to the following: criminal activity, loitering, 

increased traffic, noise, litter, and a loss of trade for other businesses 

located nearby by interference. Local government control of land use and 

organized development helps promote local community values. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 82 of 98



The member agencies of LEC have an ethical duty and statutory obligation 

to ensure the safety of our communities. Medical marijuana dispensaries 

are harmful to the surrounding community and its residents and constitute 

a public nuisance contrary to our community values which support 

Washington County as a safe place to live, work, and raise a family." 

Mayor Hatcher suggested that this issue be presented to Council for consideration, as 

Washington County communities share a tradition of adopting rules that are supportive 

of each other.  With six (6) cities already imposing moratoriums, it would be prudent for 

North Plains to align its policies with the neighboring agencies.  The larger cities of 

Hillsboro, Tualatin and Sherwood are taking a lead in vetting policies and ordinances.  

Staff recommends that Council discuss its approach to the medical marijuana issue.  

Beaverton has already adopted both an ordinance and moratorium.  

Helpful links that explain the State law in more detail are below: 

State Statute:  http://www.oregon.gov/osp/des/docs/med_mj_patient_info.pdf  

Rules for dispensaries: http://www.oregon.gov/oha/mmj/Pages/rules.aspx  

Dispensary registration: 

http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon

_nu.html  

Status of regulations in other communities: 

http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon

_wh.html  

Fiscal Impact: The ordinance will not have any direct fiscal impact on the City.  At this 

time there are no dispensaries, or any requests to locate dispensaries in town.  The City 

also has no special permits or taxes associated with marijuana dispensary.   

Environmental Issues:  NA 

Sample Motion: No motion item is for discussion only.  

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 83 of 98

http://www.oregon.gov/osp/des/docs/med_mj_patient_info.pdf
http://www.oregon.gov/oha/mmj/Pages/rules.aspx
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_nu.html
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_nu.html
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_wh.html
http://www.oregonlive.com/politics/index.ssf/2014/03/medical_marijuana_in_oregon_wh.html


 

Ordinance No. xxx 

Adopted: April 7, 2014 

Marijuana Facilities 

Page 1 of 2 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS TEMPORARILY PROHIBITING 
THE LOCATION OF MEDICAL MARIJUANA FACILITIES WITHIN THE CITY OF 

NORTH PLAINS 
 

WHEREAS, in the 2013 Special Session, the Oregon Legislature approved 
House Bill 3460 which creates a medical marijuana registration system and allows for 
medical marijuana facilities to be located in areas zoned for commercial, industrial, or 
mixed use; and 

 
WHEREAS, House Bill 3460 also includes further specific restrictions on the 

location of medical marijuana facilities related to proximity to schools attended by 
minors and to other medical marijuana facilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, this use and these restrictions are not currently included in North 

Plains Municipal Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission will shortly begin the process of amending 
the zoning ordinances to add zoning regulations for medical marijuana facilities, a 
process expected to take up to eight months, and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Plains City Council believes that siting medical marijuana 

facilities within the City absent zoning regulations endangers the health, peace, and 
welfare of the City of North Plains. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Effective with the adoption of this ordinance, no person 

shall site a medical marijuana facility (as described in 
House Bill 3460 of the 2013 Oregon Special Legislative 
Session) within the city limits of North Plains. 

 
Section 2. The prohibition on siting of medical marijuana facilities 

shall be in effect for two hundred and forty (240) days 
from the effective date of this Ordinance, or until the 
effective date of an adopted amendment to the 
Municipal Code establishing zoning regulations for such 
facilities, whichever occurs first. 

 
Section 3. The City Manager is charged with enforcement of this 

temporary prohibition. 
 
INTRODUCED on the xx day of _______, 2014, AND ADOPTED this 

xxth day of ____________, 2014. 
 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 84 of 98



 

Ordinance No. xxx 

Adopted: April 7, 2014 

Marijuana Facilities 

Page 2 of 2 

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, Deputy City Recorder 

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 85 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 86 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
February 2014-Auto Pay

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No: 9H



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 87 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 88 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 89 of 98

mreh
Typewritten Text
February 2014-Manual Checks

mreh
Typewritten Text
Agenda Item No:9H



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 90 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 91 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 92 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 93 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 94 of 98



_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 95 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 10A    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  March 12, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Approval of city policies Number 614-631 

Request:  Council approve policies Number 614-631 
 
Background:   The draft policy manual was distributed at the 9/16/13 council meeting.   
 
To manage the workload of the reviewing ordinance Council directed that batches of 
policies be presented at a series of meetings. This list of policies was actually slated to 
be reviewed at the March 3, 2014 meeting, but due to time constraints and a full agenda 
it was deferred to the March 17, 2014 Council meeting. 
 
Policies to be approved on January 21, 2014 are: 
614 Inclement Weather 
619 Bulletin Boards 
620 Outside Employment 
621 Criminal Acts 
622 Political Activity 
625 Meeting participation 
626 Religious Accommodation 
627 Communications 
630 Whistleblower 
631 Use of Electronic Media 
 
All policies are as previously distributed to Council. 
  
Fiscal Impact:   Review and adoption of the policies has no direct fiscal impact.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation:  All the policies will be approved by one motion after all have been 
reviewed and discussed. 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 96 of 98



 

Agenda Item No: 10B     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  March 17, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: 4th of July Fireworks 

Request:  Council consider a strategy regarding fireworks on the 4th of July. 
 
Background:  For the past two years, Recology has funded a fireworks show after the 
4th of July celebration downtown.  Last year a change in the host agreement between 
the City and Recology raised the per ton tipping fee from $0.50 per ton to $1 per ton.  
As a result the City anticipates receiving about $35,000 per year from the agreement.  A 
portion of these funds are set aside for the maintenance of Highland Court 
($10,000/year) and the remainder of the funds are incorporated into the General Fund, 
from which Council can allocate for any activity without restrictions.   
 
The fireworks show has been well received each year, and attracts both residents and 
visitors.  Other fireworks shows are located in Banks and Forest Grove.  The City of 
Hillsboro does not sponsor a show.   
 
This year staff is actively seeking sponsors, and has set a goal of $10,000 for fireworks 
in addition to $10,000 for activities on Commercial Street.  While some progress is 
being made on fundraising, there are few commitments at this time.   
 
Staff would like solicit contributions directly from residents through the water bill and 
donation jars around town.  Prior to taking such a step Council’s advice is being sought.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Acquiring sponsorships and local support for fireworks is essential if the 
event is to have minimal impact on the City’s bottom line.  The cost of the full 4th of July 
in the past was about $20,000, with more than half of the expense going towards 
fireworks. The City has contributed approximately $2,500 to the event, in addition to 
staff time.  Entry fees paid by vendors and car show participants and t-shirt sales have 
offset most costs.   
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 
Recommendation:  Council provide guidance regarding direct solicitation of residents 
for funding for the 4th of July fireworks.   

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 97 of 98



April 2014 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary Alternate Note Date 

    

City Council   
7:00 p.m. at Jessie 
Mays Community Hall 

04/07 

Planning Commission Hatcher  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 04/09 

Volunteer Recognition 
Spaghetti Dinner 

 Thursday at 6:30 at Jessie Mays 04/10 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel Demagalski 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 04/10 

Super Saturday: Special Event 
 

Kukatonon Children’s African Dance Troupe 
@ 1:00 at Jessie Mays (rescheduled to this 
date because of the snow in February) 

04/12 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher DeBry 2nd Monday @  12 noon 04/14 

Library Board Lenahan  3rd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 04/16 

Spring Country Classic Dance 
sponsored by NP Senior 
Center  

  Jessie Mays @ 7:30 04/19 

City Council    
7:00 p.m. at Jessie 
Mays Community Hall 

04/21 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) 

Hatcher  4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 04/23 

Parks Board  4th Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 04/23 

Playdate   
Jessie Mays Community 
Hall @ 1:30 p.m. 

04/27 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Warren Demagalski   

 

_____________________________ 
North Plains City Council Packet 

Monday, March 17, 2014 
Packet Pagination: Page 98 of 98


	4A 031714 Preliminary Agenda
	4A 030314 Minutes
	9A Memo smokehouse summit
	9A Smokehouse summit guide
	9B Memo Chamber of Commerce and the Ice Cream Social
	9B1 Letter to CC FM and Ice Cream Social 03-07-2014
	Letter to City
	Letter to City Council Re Ice Cream Social 03-07-2014
	Attachment A City Resolution No 1816 Authorize Thursday Marketplace
	City Resolution No 1816 Authorize Thursday Marketplace
	City Resolution No 1816 Authorize Thursday Marketplace_0001

	Attachment B Thursday Marketplace Map-Ice Cream Social

	9C 01-03 Item 7D Moonlight UB Reso 1707
	9C Water Bill Expenses 2014
	9D Memo Resolution 1822 Dissolution of infill incentives
	9D Resolution No. 1822 Terminating infill incentive
	9F Application for Appt Budget Comm Hirst
	9G Memo Location of Medical Marijauna facilities
	9G Ordinance Draft No. 422 marijuana
	9H February Check Register-Auto Pays
	9H February Check Register-Manual Checks
	10A Memo Progress on draft City Policies
	10B Memo fireworks
	12B Calendar April 2014



